
AGENDA & NOTICE 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY 
NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING  
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2024, 6:30 PM  

Meeting Location:  County of Los Angeles Hall of Administration 
         Sybil Brand Room 372 
         500 W. Temple Street 
         Los Angeles, CA 90012 

To Listen Via Telephone: (669) 444-9171 
        Webinar ID: 843 3844 9426 

To View Via Web: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84338449426 

To Provide Public Comment: You may submit written public 
comment via email to contact@lanaic.lacounty.gov. Please note 
“LANAIC Public Comment” in subject line. Please submit your 
public comment or documentation as soon as possible but no later 
than 5 p.m. the night before the scheduled meeting. Public 
comment received after this time will be added to the next regular 
Commission meeting. 

 
 
 

 

 

ALEXANDRA VALDES 
Executive Director 
Tlingit/Athabascan 

SHAWN IMITATES DOG, Chairperson 
Lakota 

MARK VILLASEÑOR, Vice Chairperson 
Fernandeño Tataviam 

AUDRA WISE, Secretary 
Zia Pueblo & Laguna Pueblo 

DENISE ESCOTO, Treasurer 
Northern Cheyenne  

CAROLINE BHALLA, Commissioner 
Menominee Tribe of Wisconsin 

CHRISSIE CASTRO, Commissioner 
Navajo 

ANDREA N. GARCIA, M.D., Commissioner 
Mandan, Hidatsa, Arikara 

DAWN JACKSON, Commissioner 
Saginaw Chippewa 

MONA MORALES RECALDE, Commissioner 
Gabrieleno Tongva 

JOHN ONLY A CHIEF, Commissioner 
Pawnee Nation 

RUDY ORTEGA JR., Commissioner 
Fernandeño Tataviam 

TED TENORIO, Commissioner
Tiguan Nation 

RICH TOYON, Commissioner 
Acjachemen        

RENE’ WILLIAMS, Commissioner 
Colville Tribes 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. INVOCATION & LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
3. ROLL CALL
4. COMMISSIONER INTRODUCTIONS
5. WECOME NEW COMMISSIONER CAROLINE BHALLA (SUPERVISOR MITCHELL

APPOINTEE)

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84338449426
mailto:contact@lanaic.lacounty.gov


AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2024, 6:30 PM 

2 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT
7. ACTION ITEMS
7.1. Review and take possible action adopting the January 16, 2024 Los Angeles

City/County Native American Indian Commission (LANAIC) Unapproved Meeting 
Minutes 

7.2. Review and take possible action adopting a letter to the County of Los Angeles Board of 
Supervisors Recommending that they support the seating of the Cherokee Nation's 
delegate to the United States House of Representatives per the 1835 Treaty of New 
Echota 

8. PRESENTATIONS

8.1 Care First Community Investment Updates, Tencha Chavez (LANAIC CFCI Alternate 
Designee) 

8.2 Introduction to County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health Office of 
Environmental Justice and Climate Health, Bryce Lewis-Smith (Associate, Better World 
Group)  

8.3 Roles & Responsibilities of LANAIC Executive Director, Heather Rigby (Chief Deputy, 
Department of Arts and Culture) 

8.4 Framework to Establish a Land Acknowledgment for the Los Angeles City Council, 
Ronnell Hampton (Principal Equity Strategist, LA Civil + Human Rights and Equity 
Department), Diamond James (Office of Race and Equity Director, LA Civil + Human 
Rights and Equity Department) & Matthew Joun (Policy Analyst, LA Civil + Human 
Rights and Equity Department) 

9. CHAIR’S REPORT
9.1 February 1, 2024 Commission Services New Commissioner Training Recap 

10. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
10.1 FY23-24 Q3 Priority Projects 

11. COMMITTEE & AD-HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS
11.1 Self Governance Board 

11.2 Homelessness Committee 

11.3 2024 Native American Heritage Month Ad Hoc Committee 

11.4 FY23-24 Annual Report Ad Hoc Committee 

11.5 Legislative Agenda Ad Hoc Committee 

11.6 Anniversary of the Indian Citizenship Act, June 2, 1924 Ad Hoc Committee 



AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2024, 6:30 PM 

3 

12. COMMISSIONER GENERAL COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
13. ANNOUNCMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
14. COMMISSION ADJOURNMENT
Meetings are held in English. If interpretation in other languages or accommodations for persons with 
disabilities are needed, please contact the Commission at 213-738-3241 at least 3 business days before 
the meeting. The meetings of the Los Angeles City/County Native American Indian Commission are 
accessible to persons with disabilities.  

Contact: www.lanaic.lacounty.gov, contact@lanaic.lacounty.gov, or (213) 738-3241 



LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

1 

The January 16, 2024, meeting Los Angeles City/County Native American Indian Commission 
(LANAIC) was at County of Los Angeles Hall of Administration, Sybil Brand Room 372, 500 W. 
Temple Street, Los Angeles, California, 90012. 

Call to Order 

Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog called the meeting to order at 6:35 P.M. and read the Los 
Angeles County Land Acknowledgment. 

Invocation  

Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog provided an invocation. 

Roll Call 

Present: Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog 
Vice Chairperson Mark Villasenor 
Secretary Audra Wise 
Treasurer Denise Escoto 
Andrea Garcia 
John Only A Chief 
Mona Morales Recalde 
Dawn Jackson 
Rudy Ortega Jr. 
Mark Villasenor 
Ted Tenorio 
Rene’ Williams 

Absent: Chrissie Castro 
Rich Toyon 

Quorum was met. 

Commissioner & Staff Introductions 

Commissioners provided brief introductions including their names, appointing office and tribal 
affiliation. 

Public Comment 

Tencha Chavez shared out information on behalf of the Care First Community Investment 
(CFCI) Advisory Committee. Tencha stated that the AIAN Adult Day Care Center for program 
area 28 has increased its budget up to 10 million dollars over three years. Tencha also stated 



LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

2 

that there has been an increase in the number of applications. Tencha also stated that CFCI 
was ruled as constitutional and that she is a member of the subcommittee that will analyze the 
best ways to capture data for CFCI programs. 

Cynthia Ruiz stated that she is the Chair of Cherokees of Los Angeles, that the LANAIC is 
important to the community and that she is attending the meeting to show support. 

Josh Candelaria stated that they were in attendance to provide a statement on behalf of the San 
Manuel Band of Mission Indians for agenda item 8.3. 

Action Items 

Review & approval of the Unapproved December 19, 2023 Los Angeles City/County Native 
American Indian Commission (LANAIC) Meeting Minutes 

A motion was made by Commissioner Andrea and seconded by Commissioner Rudy Ortega, Jr. 
to approve the unapproved December 19, 2023 LANAIC Meeting Minutes with a revision 
presented by Commissioner John Only A Chief – Commissioner John Only A Chief voted “No” for 
the motion “Review and take possible action adopting an LANAIC Bylaws revision that would 
change the number of required annual meetings from 12 to 11” The motion passed. 

YES Thomas, Garcia, Morales Recalde, 
Williams, Imitates Dog, Only A Chief, 
Escoto, Ortega, Jackson 

NO 
ABSTAIN Tenorio, Villasenor, Wise 
ABSENT Toyon, Castro 

Take action establishing the following 2024 Ad Hoc Committees: 2021 Native American 
Heritage Month Ad Hoc Committee, anniversary of the Indian Citizenship Act, June 2, 1924 
Ad Hoc Committee, FY23-24 Annual Report Ad Hoc Committee, and Legislative Agenda Ad 
Hoc Committee and selecting a chairperson for each ad hoc 

A motion was made by Commissioner Mark Villasenor and seconded by Commissioner Rudy 
Ortega, Jr. to establish the following 2024 Ad Hoc Committees as listed below. The motion 
passed. 

2024 NAHM Chair: Audra Wise 
Members: TBD 

Anniversary of the Indian 
Citizenship Act June 2, 1924 

Chair: Ted Tenorio 
Members: TBD  

FY 23-24 Annual Report Chair: Chrissie (pending confirmation) 



              

 
 
 

 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 
 

 
3 

 

Members: TBD 

Legislative Agenda Chair: Rudy Ortega, Jr. 
Members: TBD 

 
 
YES Thomas, Castro, Garcia, Morales 

Recalde, Villasenor, Wise, Williams, 
Imitates Dog, Tenorio, Escoto, Jackson, 
Only A Chief, Ortega 

NO  
ABSTAIN  
ABSENT Castro, Toyon 

 
Presentation 
 
Scroll presentation to Commissioner Cheri Thomas for her 16 years of service as the 
LANAIC Supervisorial District 2 appointee, Isela Gracian (Office of Supervisor Holly J. 
Mitchell Senior Deputy, Homelessness & Housing) 
 
Isela Gracian, Senior Homelessness & Housing Deputy for Supervisor Holly J. Mitchell provided 
remarks regarding Cheri Thomas’ 20 year tenure on the Commission and thanked her for her 
service.  
 
Discussion Items  
 
Updates on the 2024 LANAIC Calendar, Commissioner Dawn Jackson 
 
Commissioner Dawn Jackson shared an image of the draft calendar that she developed. 
Commissioner Jackson asked the LANAIC where the calendar will live and who will maintain it. 
Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog stated that he liked the look of the calendar draft and that it 
would be filled up quickly with community events. Commissioner Andrea Garcia asked if the 
calendar is intended to be internal for reminders or external as a resource for community. 
Commissioner Jackson stated that it could be used to frame out projects. Commissioner Cheri 
Thomas stated that the calendar could be useful for reporting, using events in the past as a 
reference. Commissioner Morales Recalde stated that the ask was for an internal calendar to 
help with scheduling and to support new members. Chairperson Imitates Dog stated that the 
Chair could update the calendar with what is submitted and could decide what is important 
internally. Commissioner Morales Recalde asked how other commissions do internal calendars. 
Alexandra stated that staff could ask the Arts Commission and Commission Services.  
 
 
Long Beach Native American Heritage Commission Discussion 



              

 
 
 

 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 
 

 
4 

 

 
Commissioner Morales Recalde stated that she did some research and is sharing about what 
she learned. Commissioner Andrea Garcia stated that she does not know anything about this 
topic but thinks that it is an awesome idea. Commissioner Morales Recalde stated that this 
could open up a partnership. Commissioner Tenorio asked if they have considered setting up an 
advisory commission or a coalition where shared information could be developed and if money 
is going to pushed that way. Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog stated that there are lots of 
Native persons in Long Beach and they have established events. Alexandra stated that Long 
Beach is its own City government. Alexandra also stated that the LANAIC would have to see 
how to partner with another local government. Commissioner Garcia stated that there is only 
one staff person for this commission and that the LANAIC could provide longer systemic 
recommendations. Chairperson Imitates Dog stated that the Long Beach Native American 
Heritage Commission could be invited to a LANAIC meeting. Alexandra stated that an invitation 
could be sent to the Long Beach City Manager. Alexandra stated that she could share the 
meeting calendar and could also share that LANAIC Commissioners are excited and would like 
to extend an open invite to meetings. 
 
HR 6859: Gabrielino/Tongva Nation Recognition Act of 2023 Discussion 
 
Public Comment was presented: 
 
Josh Candelaria provided the following statement on behalf of the San Manuel Band of Mission 
Indians: 

“The following comment is made on behalf of the San Manuel Band of Mission Indians. San 
Manuel’s long standing position is to neither support nor oppose efforts seeking federal 
recognition. However, San Manuel has insisted that federal recognition efforts follow the Federal 
Acknowledgment Process (FAP) as provided for within the Department of Interior. This ensures 
that the seven criteria set in regulations at 25 CFR Part 83 that are required of petitioners, are 
appropriately met before recognition is granted. Efforts to circumvent the FAP discredits the 
recognized regulatory process at DOI, which was set up to formally create government-to-
government relationships between the United States and legitimate tribal governments.” 

Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog read a letter submitted by the Gabrieleno-Tongva Tribal 
Council (see attached.) 

Kim Johnson provided virtual public comment and stated, “This is another reason why I am sad 
to see Cheri leave. I just want to make sure that you all know that this sets up issues with the 
County giving land to our conservancy. I am sad that Ron is gone, there are other people doing 
things differently.” 
 

The LANAIC had a discussion responding to Chair Morales’ letter and whether or not it was 
within the purview within the LANAIC to take any further action. The discussion concluded with 
the body not taking further action at this time. 



              

 
 
 

 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 
 

 
5 

 

 
Chair’s Report 
 
2024 LANAIC Retreat Planning 
 
Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog stated that he would like to hold a retreat on a Saturday 
because there are different talents at the table and he would like to select 3-5 items that could 
be worked on for the next two years. Chairperson Imitates Dog stated that he would find the 
location and make sure everyone is fed and happy. 
 
Commissioner Andrea Garcia stated that the LANAIC should revisit the purpose of this body 
because we just talked about legislative affairs and community programming is what everyone 
gets excited about. Chairperson Imitates Dog stated that there are standing events and that 
there are areas that that the LANAIC should refine. 
 
Commissioner Ortega stated that he thinks that the State budget should be placed on the 
agenda for the retreat and that there are Federal and State resources that may be impacted and 
that the LANAIC should know where the coffers are so that the body could plan wisely.  
 
Alexandra stated that she could send the budget projection for the County for the next two 
years.  
 
Committee & Ad-hoc Committee Reports 
 
Homelessness Committee 
 
Commissioner Andrea Garcia stated that commissioners will be receiving an email next week and 
it would be helpful if the information is disseminated to the community. 
 
Commissioner General Comments on Non-Agenda Items 
 
Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog stated that he would like commissioners to respond to 
Alexandra’s email to know if you are attending meetings. 
 
Announcements/Future Agenda Items 
 
None 
 
Commission Adjournment 
 
Chairperson Shawn Imitates Dog adjourned the meeting at 8:08 PM. 



The following comment is made on behalf of the San Manuel Band of Mission Indians. San 

Manuel’s long standing position is to neither support nor oppose efforts seeking federal 

recognition. However, San Manuel has insisted that federal recognition efforts follow the Federal 

Acknowledgment Process (FAP) as provided for within the Department of Interior. This ensures 

that the seven criteria set in regulations at 25 CFR Part 83 that are required of petitioners, are 

appropriately met before recognition is granted. Efforts to circumvent the FAP discredits the 

recognized regulatory process at DOI, which was set up to formally create government-to-

government relationships between the United States and legitimate tribal governments. 



 

 

 





 

 

 







 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY 

NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 
 
 

  
1055 Wilshire Blvd. Ste. 800, Los Angeles, CA 90017  

(213) 738-3241 | www.lanaic.lacounty.gov | contact@lanaic.org  

 
Chairperson 
SHAWN IMITATES-DOG 
Lakota 
 
Vice Chairperson 
MARK VILLASEÑOR  
Fernandeño Tataviam 
 
Secretary 
AUDRA WISE 
Zia Pueblo & Laguna Pueblo 
 
Treasurer 
DENISE ESCOTO 
Northern Cheyenne 
 
CAROLINE BHALLA 
Menominee Tribe of 
Wisconsin  
 
CHRISSIE CASTRO 
Navajo 
 
ANDREA N. GARCIA, M.D. 
Mandan, Hidatsa, Arikara 
 
DAWN JACKSON  
Saginaw Chippewa 
 
MONA MORALES RECALDE 
Gabrieleno Tongva 
 
JOHN ONLY A CHIEF 
Pawnee Nation 
 
RUDY ORTEGA JR. 
Fernandeño Tataviam 
 
TED TENORIO  
Tiguan Nation 
 
RICH TOYON 
Acjachemen 
 
RENE’ WILLIAMS 
Colville Tribes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALEXANDRA VALDES 
Executive Director  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
February 20, 2024  
 
County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors  
500 W Temple Street  
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 
Dear Board of Supervisors, 
 
I am writing to you on behalf of the Los Angeles City/County Native 
American Indian Commission (LANAIC) to bring to your attention a matter 
of great significance to the Native American community, specifically 
concerning the representation of the Cherokee Nation in the United States 
House of Representatives. 
 
Before delving into the purpose of this letter, I would like to address recent 
concerns raised by the Cherokee Chairman regarding State Recognized 
Tribes. It is important to note that the Los Angeles City/County Native 
American Indian Commission stands in support of State Recognized 
Tribes, understanding the unique challenges they face. However, it is 
crucial to clarify that Los Angeles does not currently have any Federally 
Recognized Tribes, and our advocacy is focused on the broader Native 
American community. 
 
Now turning to the primary reason for this communication, we urge the 
County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors to support the seating of the 
Cherokee Nation's delegate to the United States House of 
Representatives, in accordance with the 1835 Treaty of New Echota. This 
historic treaty, signed between the Cherokee Nation and the United States, 
not only resulted in the forced removal of the Cherokee from their 
homelands, known as the "Trail of Tears," but it also guaranteed the tribe 
a delegate to Congress. 
 
For nearly two centuries, the U.S. House of Representatives has failed to 
fulfill this promise. In 2019, Chief Hoskin Jr. nominated Kim Teehee as the 
Cherokee Nation delegate, reigniting efforts to hold Congress accountable 
for honoring its agreement. Thousands have voiced their support, leading 
to significant progress, including the recent congressional hearing by the 
U.S. House Rules committee in November 2022. 
 
Importantly, the Treaty of New Echota carries no expiration date, and we 
believe it is time for the U.S. government to fulfill its commitment and legal 
obligation to guarantee the Cherokee Nation proper representation in 



LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION [ 2 ] 
 

  

Congress. We respectfully request that the County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors 
authorize advocacy and encourage Congress to move forward on this critical matter. 
 
By supporting the seating of the Cherokee Nation's delegate, Los Angeles County will 
contribute to the ongoing efforts to rectify historical injustices and ensure fair and 
equitable representation for all Native American communities. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter, and we look forward to the County's continued 
commitment to promoting justice and equality for all. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Shawn Imitates Dog  
LANAIC Chairperson 
 




